

MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the
LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from electronic originals
(may include minor formatting differences from printed original)

LAWS
OF THE
STATE OF MAINE

AS PASSED BY THE

ONE HUNDRED AND SEVENTEENTH LEGISLATURE

FIRST REGULAR SESSION
December 7, 1994 to June 30, 1995

THE GENERAL EFFECTIVE DATE FOR
FIRST REGULAR SESSION
NON-EMERGENCY LAWS IS
SEPTEMBER 29, 1995

PUBLISHED BY THE REVISOR OF STATUTES
IN ACCORDANCE WITH MAINE REVISED STATUTES ANNOTATED,
TITLE 3, SECTION 163-A, SUBSECTION 4

J.S. McCarthy Company
Augusta, Maine
1995

PART A

Sec. A-1. Allocation. The following funds are allocated from the Highway Fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1995, to the departments listed, to carry out the purposes of this Part.

	1994-95
ADMINISTRATIVE AND FINANCIAL SERVICES, DEPARTMENT OF	
Department and Agencies - Statewide	
Unallocated	\$700,000
Provides for the allocation of funds to satisfy the requirements of Public Law 1993, chapter 649, Part A, section A-1.	
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE AND FINANCIAL SERVICES TOTAL	<hr/> 700,000
ATTORNEY GENERAL, DEPARTMENT OF THE	
District Attorneys' Salaries	
Personal Services	(14,558)
All Other	14,558
Total	<hr/> -0-
Provides for the allocation of funds through a line category transfer from Personal Services to All Other for the purposes of paying for STA-CAP charges.	
DEPARTMENT OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL TOTAL	<hr/> -0-
PART A, SECTION 1 TOTAL ALLOCATIONS	<hr/> \$700,000

PART B

Sec. B-1. Allocation. The following funds are allocated from the Highway Fund for the fiscal

year ending June 30, 1995, to the departments listed, in order to provide funding for approved reclassifications and range changes.

	1994-95
PUBLIC SAFETY, DEPARTMENT OF	
Highway Safety DPS	
Personal Services	\$9,917
State Police	
Personal Services	9,040
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY TOTAL	<hr/> 18,957
SECRETARY OF STATE, DEPARTMENT OF THE	
Administration - Motor Vehicles	
Personal Services	25,572
DEPARTMENT OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE TOTAL	<hr/> 25,572
PART B, SECTION 1 TOTAL ALLOCATIONS	<hr/> \$44,529

PART C

Sec. C-1. Carrying balance. Any balance remaining on June 30, 1995 in the Highway Fund "Salary Plan" program in the Department of Administrative and Financial Services may not lapse but must be carried forward to June 30, 1996.

Emergency clause. In view of the emergency cited in the preamble, this Act takes effect when approved.

Effective March 31, 1995.

CHAPTER 6

S.P. 115 - L.D. 290

An Act Concerning the Degree-granting Authority of Beal Business School

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. P&SL 1967, c. 83, first ¶ is repealed and the following enacted in its place:

Sec. 1. Beal College to confer associate degrees. Beal College, an educational institution located in Bangor, in the County of Penobscot, is authorized by appropriate action of its directors to confer upon all who satisfactorily complete the 2-year course of instruction as those directors may prescribe, within the scope customarily established by colleges offering such a curriculum, the degree of Associate of Science.

See title page for effective date.

CHAPTER 7

H.P. 44 - L.D. 38

An Act to Amend the Charter of the Sewer District of the Town of Kennebunk by Expanding Its Territorial Limits

Mandate preamble. This measure requires one or more local units of government to expand or modify activities so as to necessitate additional expenditures from local revenues but does not provide funding for at least 90% of those expenditures. Pursuant to the Constitution of Maine, Article IX, Section 21, two thirds of all of the members elected to each House have determined it necessary to enact this measure.

Emergency preamble. Whereas, Acts of the Legislature do not become effective until 90 days after adjournment unless enacted as emergencies; and

Whereas, this legislation requires referendum approval before it can take effect; and

Whereas, this referendum is connected with the Kennebunk town meeting to be held on June 13, 1995; and

Whereas, unless this Act is enacted before that date, the referendum will require a special election, which would be a considerable financial burden on the Town of Kennebunk; and

Whereas, this Act must take effect as soon as possible; and

Whereas, in the judgment of the Legislature, these facts create an emergency within the meaning of the Constitution of Maine and require the following legislation as immediately necessary for the preserva-

tion of the public peace, health and safety; now, therefore,

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. P&SL 1955, c. 69, §1 is further amended to read:

Sec. 1. Territorial limits. The territory, and the inhabitants ~~therein~~, of the Town of Kennebunk ~~which is~~ situated between the Atlantic Ocean and the southeasterly side of the Maine Turnpike and the territory of the Town of Kennebunk situated on the northwesterly side of the Maine Turnpike and described on the March 1994 Town of Kennebunk tax maps as follows: Map 36, Lot 5; Map 36, Lot 6; P/O 36, Lot 7; P/O 36, Lot 7A; Map 36, Lot 7B; P/O 37, Lot 5; Map 45, Lot 18; Map 45, Lot 18A; Map 45, Lot 19; P/O 45, Lot 14; P/O 78, Lot 18; Map 88, Lot 15; Map 88, Lot 24; Map 88, Lot 24A; Map 88, Lot 24B; Map 89, Lot 1; Map 89, Lot 20 and the inhabitants of that territory is hereby made and declared to be are a public sewerage district and a body politic and corporate under the name of "Kennebunk Sewer District" ~~and shall be~~ which is a system of public sewerage constructed, maintained and operated for the public health and welfare and for the benefit of ~~said~~ the residents and of the property ~~therein in the town~~ served by ~~said~~ the sewerage facility, in the manner, with the rights, duties and immunities ~~hereinafter in this act set forth~~ described in this Act.

Sec. 2. Emergency clause; referendum; effective date. In view of the emergency cited in the preamble, this Act takes effect when approved only for the purpose of permitting its submission to the legal voters within the Kennebunk Sewer District at the next regular town election to be held on June 13, 1995 or at a special town meeting to be called and held for the purpose within 3 months of the approval of this Act. This election must be called, advertised and conducted according to the law relating to municipal elections, except that the registrar of voters is not required to prepare or the town clerk to post a new list of voters. For the purpose of registration of voters, the registrar of voters must be in session on the secular day next preceding the election. The town clerk of the town shall prepare the required ballots, on which the town clerk shall reduce the subject matter of this Act to the following question:

"Do you favor expanding the territory of the Kennebunk Sewer District to include the industrial zone of the Town of Kennebunk located on the northwesterly side of the Maine Turnpike?"

The voters shall indicate by a cross or check mark placed against the words "Yes" or "No" their opinion of the same.